
Andrew Palmer an Geert Jan Vall Gelder

Sy1riaC an Arabic Inscriptions the Monastery
of St Mark’s 1n Jerusalem

'The Jacobite, CT Syrıan Orthodox, of St Mark’s ın the Old City of
Jerusalem contaıns number of iNnscr1pti0ons carved and paınted ın the wood OTr

of ItSs tabrıc. Some ATC 1ın Syrı1ac, the lıturgical language of the Jacobites (all
these, unless otherwise, Aı iın Serto Pshitö scr1pt); others ATC ın Arabıec:
st1ill others, though 1n Arabıc, ATC inscrıbed wıth Syriac characters, 1in the arı
chunt THAHEeET (all these, wıthout EXCEPLION,; Ar 1n Sertö Pshitö scr1pt); and ONEC

ÖOr LW AT bılıngual, 1ın Syrıac and 1ın Arabic. Most ATC of FEeCEeNt ate (nıneteenth
(B twentieth century); but LW reter earlier per10ds. One day early ın 1986
Andrew Palmer obtained permi1ssıon photograph these inscr1pt10ns, but
there W as tiıme CASULE them, record theır posıtıon wıth due CarCc, OTr check
readıngs the SpOTt Nevertheless, 1T seemed us that 1t W as worth publıshing
them trom the photographs.

The IMOST famous inscrıption of St Mark’s 15 promiınently posıtioned the
inter10r all of the maın church, iımmediately the rıght 4S yYyOU C  9 It has
been encased ın wood wıth cheet of olass 1n tront of 1t and 1t 15 cshown all
tourısts. The record refers the rebuilding, 1n L of church of the
Mother of God the sıte of the house of Mark the Evangelıst. Meınar-
dus‘ that the us«e of the title ‘Mother of God? tor Mary indicates ate
after the Counciıl of Ephesus 1ın 431 Koriah Karkenny“ accordıngly claıms
that the inscr1ıption 15 of the sıxth CENTLUFY; he tells us that 1t W 4s discovered 1ın
1940, though he Say S nothing of the ciırcumstances of ItSs discovery. It has een
sıgnalled ın x00d taıth by the gu1de-books 45 authentic early inscription” and
It 15 the sole evıdence that the ast Supper took place thıs SpOL (assumınz 1t
Was held AT the house of John Mark) The IMNAaSONLY of thıs church 15 of the
Crusader period (the pointed arch through which ONEC EeNTErSs 15 ıllustrated by
Meınardus, loc Cit.); and the block which the inscrıption 15 engraved forms

he Syrıan Jacobites 1ın the Holy City“, Orientalia Suecanda (for the yYCar Uppsala, 1964,
78 wıth ote

The Syrıan Orthodox Church ıIn +he Holy Land, Jerusalem, 1976 (captıon the tourth ıllustra-
t10n atfter p.48).
Nee Palmer, “The Hıstory of the Syrıan Orthodox in Jerusalem’, OrChr 7 9 1991; D:



34 Palmer Van Gelder

part of the Crusader all It the inscrıption W as NOT built into the all by
Crusader architects centurıes betore thıs church had anı y 4SsSOC1atıon wıth the
Syrıac language (which unlıkely), 1t MUST be either CODY of earlier
inscr1ıption else traud

Translatıion:
“This (18) the house of Mary, the mother of John wh WAasSs called Mark: and 1T Was

proclaımed church by the Holy Apostles iın the A of the Mother of God,
Mary, atter the Ascensıion of Q Lord Jesus Christ 1Into Heaven: and 1t Was built

second tiıme, atter Jerusalem Was (HE ‘had been’) destroyed by Kıng Titus, ın
the VCar 73 ot Christ

The asterisks around the phrase ‘of Chrıist? indıicate that thıs corresponds
abbrevijated word iın the inscrıption. hıs conventıon 15 sed throughout

the present publicatiıon.
/ 3 MUST be the YVCar of the alleged rebuilding of the church, the destruc-

tion of Jerusalem by Tıtus havıng occurred September O Vespasıan
W9aS actually the Emperor ftrom 69 I9 It 15 anomalous tor hıs SO  } Tiıtus
(Emperor 9-8 be called ‘Kıng here, Since he Was merely “Caesar’ DEl the
time. The author could be excused thıs mistake ıf he TOtC; 4S the title sed tor
the Vırgın Mary STS, atter 431; although the fact that the inscrıption ends
wıth the VCar JA would tend SUggCSL that IT W as wrıtten the OCccasıon of the
alleged rebulldıng of the church 1ın that YCAarL.

The degenerate letter-forms (a POOTF imıtatıon of Estrangelo scr1pt) betray
ate AL the en of the Middle Ages. The closest parallel 1S, thınk, tifteenth-
CENTUFY inscrıption AL Hah 1in Tür Abdıin. * The scr1pt of the inscrıption ın
Jerusalem 15 actually much less accomplıshed than thıs; but that 15 what
should CXPECL, see1ing that the TeINBEtEEe plateau of Tür Abdin W as bastıon of
Syr1ac lıterary culture GVENn 1ın the tiıtteenth CENTUFY, when the POST of the Syrıan
Orthodox Church neglected ItSs lınguistic heritage.

In the the patrıarch Khalaftf acquıred the Coptic church of the Mother of
God 1ın the mıddle of the Cıty” for the Jacobite congregatıon 1n Jerusalem; an 1n
1491/2 pılgrım trom Tür Abdıin W 4S apparently told by the Syrıans that thıs
church W 4S the house of Sımon Peter ? Sınce thıs pılgrim, the presbyter Addaıi,

Palmer, ‘A Corpus of Inscriptions trom Tür Abdin and Envırons’, OrChr aı 1987 pp. 55-
1939 136 1 9 dated 1442/3, wıth the photograph 151
See Palmer, “CThe Hıstory of the Syrıan Orthodox ıIn Jerusalem)’, OrChr 7 9 19910 p331, where
the reference 1n (G@)7= cshould include 8 f, W 3as there miısled by lacuna and taıled

SCr that the church anı the house WCIC iıdentitied.
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SOCS identify the house wiıth that Bl which Sımon took refuge after P-
ing from priıson (Acts> he INay ın fact ave been told that the church W as

the house where John Mark’s mother, NOT Deter himself, had lıved OWever
that INaYy be, Adda: oes NOLT AaPPCar AaVe 6CI OUTr inscrıption, 1NOT alı y older
inscrıption wiıth the SAamılle OX

IN 1T 15 NOL fraud, It MUStT be CODY of inscrıption tound the S1ıte after it
W as bought by the Jacobites. hıs 15 iımprobable, tor VAarıo0us reC4aSONS The Syriac
language of the inscrıption would SuUggeSL that the church W as in the possession
of Syrıac speakers AT the time 1t W as composed; but evidence has een tound
that thıs W as GVOGT: the Case before the ttteenth CENTUFY. If the inscrıption W AasSs

known AF the tiıme when the church W as purchased trom the Copts, It would
surely Aave been hajled by the earned biographer of the patrıarch John bar Shay
Allah, who describes the negotlations tor the church in SOTINC detaıl ın the (am-
bridge MS 385 toll 82-/, 4S proof that the Syrıans had ancıent title It
We miıght SUPDPDOSC that 1t W as discovered after the purchase; but then would
still aVe explaın the tact that thıs inscr1ption SCS the Christıian CIa, whereas
early Syriac inscrıptions uUuse the Seleucıd ] OT another datıng SYStTEM, but
the Christian STa  S Perhaps Seleucıd ate W as converted into Christıian ate ıf
the inscrıption 15 the result of transcrıption made around

It 15 INOTC probable that the knowledge that Tıtus conquered Jerusalem 1n
70 W as obtained from WEesSLETN SOUTCEC and that the author of the inscr1p-

tıon W AS insufficıently educated CONvVert the ate Into the Seleucıd OTA For the
tinal agaınst the authenticıty of thıs inscrıption 15 the POOT knowledge
of the Syrıac language displayed by 1tSs author. There A Al least iıntelicıtıes
of expression and ONEC downright CII OÖL; 1ın the VC tirst word hıs 15 INCONCE1IV-
able 1ın early author. hıs inscrıption oes NOLT contaın al y of the hallowed
tormulae 0)8 reSPECL anı y of the conventions tamılıar us ftrom Syriac epıgra-
phy.

We I11LAYy conclude that the inscrıption W as engraved atter the vVIsSIt of theP
byter Adda:j 1n order o1ve credence the he W Aas told The motıve 15
evıdent: AT Jerusalem SSECT has advertise the close 4SsSOC1aAtıon of sıtes iın
ItSs possession wıth EVEeNTtS 1n the narratıve of the Gospels and Acts tormer

of the Jacobites ar Jerusalem had claımed be the house of Sımon the
Pharıisee, where Mary Magdalene washed Jesus’s feet, and haır trom Mary
head,; tound the SPOCT, W 4S held the fact; although olance AL the
Gospel 15 enough chow that Sımon’s house cshould be sought AT Bethany, NOT

1n Jerusalem.“ The repOrt that the inscrıption W as discovered ın 1940 (no doubt
1in the COUTSE of strıppıng the walls PTFCDarc tor the replastering recorded by
inscr1ıption of that YCAar, which 15 published below, 4S number 15) either

See Palmer, “The Hıstory of the Syrıan Orthodox ın Jerusalem’, OrChr /3, 1991, p.28f.
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that 1t had een covered AT SOTINEC ate atter the fifteenth CENTUFY, presumably
by bıshop who Sa through the traud and W 4S ashamed of it;, (less probably)that 1t W as torged in 1940 and presented AaSs archaeological discovery.
The church of the Mother of God 1ın St Mark’s contaıns z0o0d deal of ornatelycarved and oilded wooden furniture (eT number A/B; below), including hıgh
SGT behind the altar, topped by three domes. In the mıddle of thıs SCICCH,; Justbelow the level of the domes, 15 panel, apparently of wood (we aVe NOT 1N-
spected 1t trom KT by), bearıng the tollowing paınted inscrıption, ın Es-
trangelö scr1pt, CXCECDL tor the first letter of the last word, whıiıch, under the
influence of the Arabıc aimne ‘Dayr al-‘Adas’, perhaps, 15 wrıtten 1n Sertö
Pshitö.

AL c  A<
CT3 + 71Lt:\m<'\ Maa r< \

‘<3h\1&731 A, az .As)'\ AaAqT IMN

"\._<'\_{\\qm w< & ja
+ 7:\\.):."\(\\<:!
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Iranslation:
Memorıal* In the VYCar 436 (ZA 1124/5) C the Greeks* (the bıshop) who
commıssıoned the IMNONASTEFY of the Magdalene, Ignatıus of Jerusalem, who 15
Hesnun, died ”
‘In the YCar 1897 1585/6) of the Greeks* (the bishop) who restored Dayr
al-‘Adas, “Gregory” ot Jerusalem, wh 15 Yühannoön of Gargar, Was martyred.’
Possibly thıs panel W as paınted OT commıssıoned by Bishop Abd al-Nür, who
commıssıoned all the wooden furnıture 1ın the SANCTUArY ın 1851 (see inscr1ıption
number 4A/B, below). The intormatıon 1$ ın accord wiıth what 1S known about
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these LW bıshops from other ources.‘ 1+ MUST aVe een ftound in reliable
(probably manuscrı1pt) OTG The 1TC4SONNN tor copyıng them ONTO the panel
miıght ave been that the manuscrı1pt manuscrı1pts in question WT disınteg-
ratıng ın 18351: equalliy, the nıneteenth-century bıshop responsible tor the SEei-

ting of the panel May P wiıshed TAaW attention the fact that hıs cCOomm1Ss-
S10N for the church entıtled hım specıal place 1n the hıstory of the Jacobite
monastıc communıty AT Jerusalem, in the ıllustri0us COMDANY of the LW

bıshops commemorated 1n the inscr1ption. Hesnun W A4S assoc1ated wıth the
of St Mary Magdalene, Yuhannon ot Gargar wıth another 1ın the CIty

which adopted the IN of tormer dependency in the COUNLFY the north of
Jerusalem, Dayr al-‘Adas: 13a the SAaIlıc WdY (he might aVve wıshed ımply)
Abd al-Nur W 3as the maJor benetactor of St Mark’s.

As MI Arr ot interest, there W aS tormerly inscrıption the chancel-
ü LGG of the church of Öt Cyriac 1ın Arnas, Tür Abdin, whiıch, ıke thıs panel 1in
Jerusalem, preserved in epıgraphic torm earlıer manuscrıpt records.®

See Palmer, “Che Hıstory of the Syrıan Orthodox 1n Jerusalem’, OrChr 7 9 1991 DL and
33  D
See Palmer, ‘A Corpus of Inscriptions trom JTür Abdıin and Envırons’, OrChr A 198/,

121-3, [ and . Monk and Mason the Iıgr15 Frontier: the earlıy hıstory of Tur ‘Abdin,
Cambrıdge, 1990, 209
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Bahnäim, Bayt Marqus {17 Urushalim Dayr Mar arqus [’l-Suryan,
Jerusalem, 1962 16-19, the results of hıs researches ın the lıbrary of
St Mark’s the SUCCESSIVE restoratıons of that We <hall summarıse
that ACGOUHNE here, addıng 1t trom the epigraphic evidence by introducing
urther inscr1ıpti0ons iın chronological order 1958

In 17478 the Patrıarch Isaac SCHT Gregory Sımon 4S Metropolıtan Jerusalem
wıth the Metropolıtan Shukr Allz and the monks Rabban Wanıs ot Gargar,
Rabbaäan Hanna, Rabbaän Abd al-Nüur and Rabbaäan Nı ma, the last three being
from Aleppo. The MONASTEFY Was ın deplorable of delapıdation, although
ItS Ial Yy debts had already een paıd off by Isaac’s predecessor, the Patrıarch
George, who had made Madgdıisı Abd al-Karım ot Jerusalem hıs mudabbir
(possıbly “abbot’) there.7 hıs I1L1Lan continued 45 mudabbir tor couple of
under the LW bishops SCHE by 1SAAC, who instructed him begın the restoratıon
of the fabric; 1ın 1719 he W as succeeded A4AS mudabbir by Rabbän ‘Abd al-Ahad,
the SO  an of Fanah!® of Mardın, wh. completed the external and ınternal resSTOra-

t10n in chort time. He W Aas energetic INan, wh also opened school,
vanızed the hıstoric lıbrary and acquıred large house opposıte the
At the death of Bishop Sımon, the Patrıarch Isaac ordaıned ın hıs place Rabbän
Abd al-Ahad hımself. Wırth the aSssıstance of HE mudabbir, Rabbaäan Yühan-
na, he continued the restoratıon and joıned the the large house he
had bought whıile still monk

In 17358 Bıshop Gregory George of Aleppo W as appomted the SCC of
Jerusalem. hıs I1L1LAanl had the 411 of the restored and locked
wıth ıron gate agaınst unspecıfied threat. He erected 1C STr UGEUTE ın the
inter10r Ahal restored whatever W AasS still 1n eed of renovatıon, before returnıng

Aleppo, hıs PrOpCI diocese, 1n 1744
In 178011 certaın Biıshara W asSs appomted Bishop of Jerusalem. He COMN-

sıderable SUIMNS restoratiıon of the tabrıc and acquırıng fine Communıon
Vessels. He W as succeeded by Bıshop Abraham from Sadad, wh carrıed the
struggle maıntaın the buildings.““ °He bought and and made 1t relig10us
endowment 45 mortmaın for the benetit of the monasterYy.'

COn the title ‘MaddıstT”, SC Kaufhold,; ‘Der Ehrentitel “Jerusalempilger””, OrChr 75 )7
pp:44-61

10 Kauthold adds ‘DDen Beinamen vokalısıert Karkenny 1ın eınem Prospekt über das Markus-
kloster un: 1n ‘Holy Land” 46 als “Fenah”; Colbı, Christianıty In +he Holy Land, Tel Avıv
1969, 104 als “Panah” Graf, Geschichte der christlichen arabischen Literatur 533 I1 504 VETI-

meldet einen heilıgen “Au Fanah” der “ Fana
11 Or rather, before 1//74, ın which yYCar he 15 attested by MS Mıngana Syr. 24 /; O W thıs observa-

t10n and the knowledge that Bishara became Maphrıan 1ın 1789 Kauthold.
hıs 15 ONEC of ser1es of PCrSONS from Sadad, SIXtYy SCVECNTY kılometres south-south-east of
Homs, 1n Syrıa (still aNl-Christian settlement ın whı WEeTIC assocı1ated trom thıs t1ime
wıth St Mark’’s.
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In 1833 the IMNONASTECY W as agaın thoroughly restored, CT the end of the
reign of Bıshop Abd al-Ahad al-Daalı. hıs 15 perhaps the ‘Abd al-Ahad Inen-
tiıoned 1ın rhymıng and thus Occasıonally oddly worded) Arabıc inscrıption 1ın

eft of number
the church of the Mother of God, SEeTt later inscr1ıptions the all the

b J6 A S en A f.> 5) d<
OTA Ll 4.w“‘ LAa

3 SA (‚„J"l NC I> l| 4.;Ldu
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JIranslatıon:

“Thıs building W as renovated belonging the Monastery of St Mark the
FEvangelıst, renowned AMONSSLT the Syrıans,

in Jerusalem the Holy (Urushalım al-Mugaddasa), which people tlock
ftrom CVECIYV regıon An (firom all) countrıes;

by the K AL of hım who 15 unıted iın three Persons, the mercıftul Kıng.
New monks’ cells and courtyards and portico WerTrTeCe built,

lodging tor visıtors, be they spırıtual brothers OT monks.
hıs church, called after the Vırgın, the Mother of the Messıah, the ock of

Belief, Was built (d:e restored?)
In the time of the unworthiest of hıgh prıests, Metropolıtan (bıshop) Abd Al-

Ahad;



5Syriac and Arabıc Inscriptions the Monastery of St Mark’s iın Jerusalem 41

;



47 Palmer Van Gelder

the SCIEVAaHr of the Noble Mysterıes 1E celebrant of the Eucharist) AT that tiıme
1ın thıs place,

hoping thereby recelve pardon from the ranter of forgiveness,tor hım and the congregatıon ot Chrıstians,
the ate of [1| RiA

The Arabic word translated ere a4as ‘portico’ could INCcAan anı y vaulted ÖOr tlat-
roofed LOOTMN Or hall that 15 closed three sıdes and OPCN on  @ hıs iNSCr1p-t1on could probably be read iın Its entirety trom the HC: but SOM of the black
paınt iın which 1t W asS piıcked OUuUt (as almost al the iNscriptions are) has een
whıitened, doubt 4S result of replastering the church 1n 1940 (see number I5,below), and thıs makes the photograph dıifficult read

These works WEIC supervısed, Bahniäm tells Uus, by Rabbaän Abd al-Nur of
Edessa, the discıple of Bıshop ‘Abd al-Ahad, wh succeeded the bishopric in
1840 He, LOO, endowed the wıth and and repaıred 1ts structural
detects hıs death 1ın 1877 Bahnam oes NOT mentıon that thıs bıshop SUpP-plied the of the church of the Mother of God wıth ıts present wooden
turnıiture. hıs intormation ftrom Arabıc inscription carved 1ın relıef
the back of the bıshop’s throne the north sıde of the church. The Syriac etters
AT enclosed by oval (of which the date, 1ın Arabiıc numerals, ftorms the
bottom part tramed by LW curlıng rose-bushes, raınbow of serried tulıps,tour undulating grapevınes and, between the vınes, lınked medallions of the
twelve Apostles flanking slıghtly larger medallion of the Mother of God (In
the cupboard in which the Scriptures aTC kept 15 almost ıdentical inscrıption(number B) entirely enclosed 1ın val wıth luxuriant 1ne surround-
ıng it, ın the branches of whıiıch, clusters of STapDCS, hang medallions
depicting Christ wıth OPCNH Gospel Book, lanked 1ın semicırcle by the four

eıther sıde
Evangelists and LW other wrıters, perhaps Moses and Elıjah, arı the bottom
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Translation of A wıth B’s varıant inserted:
“The panelling, carvıng and sildıng of the precınct of thıs holy place 'The
panellıng, carvıng Ahal sildıng of thıs (1.e lıbrary) of the “Holy” Scr1p-
tures| Was undertaken by Metropolitan (bıishop) Abd al-Nur, ftrom Edessa,
super10r of the of the Syrians ın al-Quds al-Sharıf (Jerusalem) hıs
happened 1n the VCar 1851 *atter Christ  »

Note the appellation of Jerusalem, dıtferent trom that sed 1ın the inscrıption of
Bıshop Abd al-Ahad. Ihree other Arabıc inscr1pt10ns, 1n the maın courtyard of
the MONASLETY, all wrıtten in Syrıac characters and al wıth the yCar 1858 in
Arabiıc aAN! Syrıiac numerals, CO  OTrst urther works by Bıshop Abd al-
Nur
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TIranslation:
“CThe building of these porticoes and the iınter10r of the EC4STEFN LOOIN W as under-
taken, wıth strıvıing of labour, by Metropolitan (bishop) ‘Abd al-Nür,
from Edessa, super10r of the of St Mark for the Syrıans, trom hıs

an the of hıs people, the believers that A in Syrıa, 1n the tıme of
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the reign ot Our Venerable L örd. the Patriarch Jacob; 1n the VCar of Christ

The ate 15 1n Syrıiac an Arabıc numerals (also iın 105 6-12). Attention has
already een drawn the semantıc extension of the Arabic word ere translated
as ‘DOFtIcO.. The second an thırd inscr1ıptions dated 1858 read 4as ollows:

Yoa 5) <‚...&hl
Sala I Ol z abo| S]

6 O U fi.> CSa

Ur 36 og
Ujj.&.g_ 32 BA MLJ_) OL

NN l &s 3 arl
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Translatıon:
“CThe construction of these three W3as undertaken A paıns by the
Metropolıitan (bıshop) Abd al-Nür, from Edessa, super10r of the of
St Mark tor the Syrıans, from hıs an the of the taıthful Syrıan
people who ATC 1n Indıa, 1ın the tiıme of the reıgn of OUur Lord the Venerable
Patriarch Jacob, 1n the VCar

1 {A öl — ROI A&n 19 V...:a\
Sala 9 Ol z
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TIranslatıon:
‘Metropolıtan (bıishop) ‘Abd al-Nuür, ot Edessa concerned himself, exerted hım-
celf and aboured tor the bulldıng of thıs holy and wıth hım hıs
dıscıples, Rabbaäan George aM Rabbaän Abd Allah, both from Sadad Great ef-
torts WEerTC performed by them in the times of the pılgriımages trom the and of
Syrıa and the and of Indıa, an those that arrıved 21 the noble and the
other holy places; in the VCar of Christ

Iwo the Arabic of thıs inscrıption ATAS the word translated 45

‘pilgrimages’ 15 plural (not tound 1ın Standard Arabıc) derived from word
meanıng ‘(travellıng) PartYy, viSıt; Sroup ; an tor ack of better alternatıve, 1t 15

read c  those that arrıved’ (guddam) where the inscrıption has qgud-
damalt.

Bıshop ‘Abd al-Nur dıed, 45 Bahnäam SayS, in 1577 thıs 15 attested by the
tollowıng Arabıc inscrıption, wrıtten iın Syr1ac characters and SEeTt 1n the north
]] of the maın church, 1above number
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Translatıon:
‘“Passed AWAY Into the of God, the FExalted: OUT late Father, Lord Eustace
(Arabıc ‘Statha‘), from Irbil (Arbela iın northern Iraq) 4S regards the (maın abode
of hıs) Tamıly, Metropolitan (bıshop) Abd al-Nür, and hıs superi0rshıp of the
house of Mark the Evangelist tor the Syrians lasted tor thırty-sıx YCals, he sutf-
tered heavy hardshıps [patıently]. Atter hıs obsequıes hıs PUurc body W a1d
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ınsıde thıs church, beneath these lınes, whiıch 15 the place of Praycr of (T Lady
the Vırgın Mother of the Messıah. hıs happened ın the VCar of Christ* S

Aprıl, the month of lowers.?

Like number 14, below, which 15 modelled it, thıs inscrıption displays
bıshop’s hard, black, shiny turban, hıs rıght hand, holding (on the left)
and hıs eft hand, holding staff (reduced the S17e of the CrOSS) tormed of LW
snakes interwıned (on the rıght), wıth wınged cherubs tıllıng the LOp GOTHGES
1bove the arch of the trame. Note that the word ‘patıently’ translates z0a-huwa
sabaur, which CAannOT be read wıth certaınty the photograph.

It W as George, ONEC of the LW discıples of °‘Abd al-Nür mentioned ın number
/ above, who succeeded the bishopric A* hıs death He lost time 1n leaving
hıs mark TIThree Arabıc inscrıptions, ın Syrıac characters, the latter LW havıng
the ate 1ın both Arabıc and Syrıac numerals, bear wıtness hıs CHCTSY. The first
15 SC in the 411 1bove Bıshop Abd al-Nür’s epıtaph (number 8
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Iranslatıion:
‘Glory be God, an thankfulness tor Hıs Mercy, wıth Whose Help the
worthy Gregofy“, Metropolıtan (bıshop) George, trom Sadad, took KD of the
renovatıon of the cloister (Arabiıc: QUSAYTA) of thıs church, the house of Mark the
Evangelıst the Orthodox* Syrıans, 1n the time of hıs headshıp of the as-
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terYy. Hıs assıstant Was hıs brother 1ın spirıt, Rabbaän Abd Allı hıs occurred in
the VCar ot Christ*

The second AT thırd of Bishop George’s inscr1pti0ons HT Sr 1n the walls ot the
buildings which they reter. Unfortunately the sıtuatıon of these and the
other inscrıpti0ns outsıde the maın church has NOT een recorded.
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Translation:
“The ot thıs LOOTIN WL voluntarıly contributed and g1ven trom theır OW

by the unworthy person) wıth the aIne of Gregory, “Metropolıtan*  »
(bıshop) George trom Sadad, super10r of the of Öt Mark the FEvangel-
1St tor the Syrıans, and hıs spiırıtual brother, the Aaronuite priest, Rabban ‘Abd
AllZz from Sadad”>, OUtT of love tor thıs noble sıte, and tor the sake of and
VIrtuUOUS remembrance, tor them an theır dead ONECS May God aAaCCECDL (thıs)
trom them aM wriıte theır in the Book oft Lite! rıtten ın the Year of
Chriıst*
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Translation:
“Wırch the Providence of God, the Exalted, the unworthy (person) wıth the aine

ot Gregory, Metropolıitan (bıishop) George trom Sadad, super10r of the ds-

Lery of ST Mark the Evangelıst for the Orthodox Syrıans, concerned hımself wıth
the building of these S1X and three porticoes, aN! lower, newly
made, AT the north sıde, owards the CAaST, from the of the MONASTETY, iın
the time of the headshıp of OUur reverend Lord, the Patrıarch Peter. Hıs assıstant
1ın these abours W as hıs spirıtual brother, Rabbän Abd Allzı from Sadad God
have uDO$N and remember ll those wh aboured tor them (U1LZ these

et cetera). Amen. rıtten 1ın the VCar of Christ
13 hıs 15 the later Patriarch: Kauthold
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‘Portico’ has twiıce een remarked upON already; ‘“orthodox’ 15 ere translated
from the Greek torm sed 1n the inscrıption of 1881 into the Arabıc al-musta-
qımı-ıman, ‘the Straight of Faıth)?.

Bishop Gregory George reigned for nearly YCAaIs, 45 the tollowing, hıs
Arabıc epıtaph 1n Syrıiac scr1pt, attests It 15 modelled the epıtaph of hıs PTFE-
decessor, Bishop Eustace Abd al-Nuür, the Arbelite, from Edessa, Anı Set in the
al 1bove number I: Bishop George’s first inscrıption
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disw raa y A \US OLS}
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TIranslation:
‘“Passed AWAY into the of God, the Exalted: (JUurTr late Father, Lord (Gre-
SOTY, Metropolıitan (bishop) George Kassıb trom Sadad hıs superiorship of
the house of St Mark W as nıneteen y  9 he suffered hardshıps for the Name of
hıs Master. After hıs obsequies hıs PUurc body W as a1d 1ın thıs church, beneath
these lınes, an (he 15 NOW) seekıng from hıs much-forgiving Lord hıs
happened the twentieth of September of the YCar of Christ* 189671

Tom about the turn of the CENLUFY onwards there 15 tendency uUse the Syrıiac
language iın epigraphic memorı1als. Appropriately enough, the first twentieth-
CENTUrY inscrıption 15 1ın Syriac aM Arabıc. It 15 seit 1n OTIE of the iınternal walls of
the present bishop’s prıvate reception-room.
13

n

“

See Brock, “Iwo Syrıac Manuscrıi1pts 1ın the Library of S.elwyn College, Cambrıdge), OrChr
(1977 9-60, 149
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Translatıon of both
“The patrıarchal resıdence W asSs built in the reign of OUT Father has varıant:
‘the Master. |; NLy Lord Twannis, Metropolıitan bishop) Elyjah, trom Mardın,
iıncumbent ot the SCC of Jerusalem tor the Old Syrıans iın the yYCal adds of
Chrıist*)]
The followıing inscr1pti0ons ATı ll exclusıvely ın Syrıac. TIThree epiıtaphs ATC

yathered OR and SEeTt in the north a1] of the maın church, adjacent
numbers and the right:
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Translation:
‘Departed trom the world of distress and removed the COUNLFY of delights:
COUT Father, My Lord Ignatıus, *DPatriarch* of Antioch, who 15 Abd Allı (wrıt-
ten ere 1n Syriac 4S ‘the Slave of God’) the Second, November 1ın the VYCar
1915 *9 Chrıiıst  ’
‘Deceased: Metropolıtan (bıshop) Gregory Ephraem of Sadad, *Metropolıitan  -
of Jerusalem, November in the VCar 19272 of Chriıst  ?
‘Deceased: The venerable Iwannıs Elyah from Mardın, sometıime super10r (of
the monastery) in Jerusalem, May in the YCar 1933 of Christ*?

It probable that these epıtaphs, which ATC divided by decoratıve motifts
and crowned by the emblems of ep1ıscopal office, wıth cherubs 1ın the LOp COTI-

NCIS, ASs in the adjacent inscrıption (number 8), MT inscribed AT the S4J4mnle time 4S

the tollowıng inscr1ıption, which 15 posıtioned dırectly 1above 1t;, tor thıs COIMN-

mMemorates (among other things) the replastering of the al 1n which both AT

sSet
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Iranslatıon:
“CThe entire plasterwork of the iınterior oft thıs church W as renovated (ın generaloverhaul) iıncluding the reinftorcement of the parapet an the tılıng of the
root wıth slabs AT the commıssıon of (MIT. Father, My Lord Philoxenus
Jacob trom Salah, the Metropolıtan and super10r of the of ST Mark 1ın
Jerusalem, Ar the CXPENSEC of the sa1ıd MONASTEFV; an the pavıng of the tloor of
the church wıth marble (was carrıed out), A the temple (1.e the sanctuary), AT
the CXPECNSC of the above-mentioned author of the COMM1SS10N, OUur Father, MyLord Philoxenus Jacob, and (as tO) the church (1.e the nave), AL the CXPECNSEC of
the Syrıan people In Jerusalem; 1ın the days of OUur Lord all-blessed, My Lord
Ignatıus Ephraem the Hırst, Patrıarch otf Antıoch and of All the BAast, ın the yCar1940 a  of Christ“

Note: The Syriac 15 deficient In everal| the cConstruction ‘the plaster-work WAas renovated wıth the reintorcement of the pParapet etc 15 odd;15 the adjective ere translated "stone’; the word translated ‘temple’ 15 INOTre
approprıiate for the A than tor the sanctuary : the partıcle Na  S (:as tO') lacks
1ts correspondıng partıcle den; an there aATfC other mınor slıps.
Bıshops could be buried iın the maın church, 4S ave scen. Al the epıscopalepıtaphs ave recorded ATC there. Prıests, monks and deacons, however,
WEIC buried 1ın LOOM adjoining small chapel elsewhere ın the hat
15 where the four following Syriac inscriptions AT sıtuated. The first 15 OUuUtL of
Step wıth the chronological order aVve far maıntaıned, SINCe It harks back

the second decade of the twentıieth CCNLUFY. hıs inscription, trıple epıtaph,
15 Nee Palmer, Monk an Mason the TıgY15 Frontier: the earlıy histor'y of Tuür ‘Abdin, Cam-bridge, 1990, 124
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15 also the only ONEC of which do NOLT POSSCSS complete ( publıshable photo-
oraph, SOINEC centimeters havıng been inadvertently missed the rıght and the
remaınder havıng been overlit wıth the flash
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TIranslatıon:
TIn the year| 1904 (Or perhaps of Christ®: *December“*, Rabbän
| Jose]p (?) of Sadad, monk aM  d presbyter”, died atter [havıng] served tor ffty-
three years.
j In the vealr 1910 *C Christ®. 10 September, Gabriel, the SO  e} of |Denhöo|] of
Hvov, monk *and presbyter”, died, havıng served tor years.
71in the yea r 1916 a  CX Christ* Aprıl | Yühan]nöon Garum of Mardiın, monk
and presbyter, departed hıs Lord, havıng \se]rved tor ten YCals, and he lıved

216tor

16 For Yühannön Garüum, E Kauthold ‘Dıe syrıschen und christlich-arabischen Hss ın Mun-
ster’, OrChr (1988), pp.89-113, p 79 (with the ate 1915 YCal before Yühannön’s death)
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Translation:
“CThe presbyter Gabriel Anto of Espes departed hıs Lord in Jerusalem the
seventh of December 1n the yYCar 1941 *of Christ*. He W 3as Orn In the yYCar 15856
a  of Christ* and ordaıned prıest 1n the VCar 1891 ot Christ*. He performed the
priestly function tor {1fty VCAaIS, of them AL SpeS, an 1n Mosul, an 15 1n
the church of Bethlehem.’?
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ESDES; iıke Hvov 1n the prev10us inscrıption an Salah ın numbers 15 an 20; 15
village 1ın JTur Abdiın, 1n the basalt COUNLFY north of Beth Zabday/Azakh (see the
tollowıing inscr1ption), Just the brink of the spectacular Nahl6ö d-Gihanno
(‘“Hell Canyon’)
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TIranslatıon:
“The late presbyter Malke Musa Anto of spes died 1ın OUT Lord the tifth of
January 1ın the VYCal 1947 of Chrıist*. He W as born in the VCar 1887 of Christ*
and ordaıned prıest 1n the VCar 1913 He performed the priestly function ın
Beth Zabday tor 17 VCaIS, 1n Qamiıshly for S, a! 1n Bethlehem for
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It W as around 1930 thınk that the iınftlux of Syrıan Christians from TIur
Abdin occurred which made Qamıishly (sıted mE ANGCcIENT Nısıbis the Syrıan
sıde of the modern border) 1NTO the Jacobite metropolıs which 1T NO 15 Malke
Musı evıidently migrated after hıs flock 4a5 INanYy PrıeSsts aVe one the
GCOUTSE of the MOST TeGCcENtT exodus the West It looks 4S ıf he Was brother of
the Prıest Gabriel whose epıtaph 15 the INsCr1pt10N, AT that he helped
hım AGCE 4as prıest Bethlehem during the last LW of his ıte
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Translatiıon
The following PCISONS from Malabar died the Lord and WeTITC entombed the
burıal oround of S10n Jerusalem
The presbyter Mattay Trayanıl of the church of Wadakara, TIravankur (Iravan-
core of India Aprıl the VCar 1927 of Chriıst
“T'he monk Jacob Pulikottil of Kunnamkulam, Koccın (Cochıin), of India 18
April the VCar 1927
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“CThe deacon Givarges Mattanchery, of Koccın (Cochıin), of Indıa, 1ın the yYCar
1929 of Christ
“Thıs commemoratıon W 4S composed by Mar Grigor10s G1varges, Metropoli-
tan“ of Angamalı 1n the VCar

orateful Dr Menon, of the Indological Instiıtute Kern AT the mi
versıty of Leiden in the Netherlands, tor the transcrıption of the PrFrODCI
He ImMay ave intended inform that Trayankıl 15 better representation of
the AL of the first presbyter commemorated iın thıs inscrıption, but

OUr conversatıon ATE inadequate. hıs memorı1al, together wıth number L
above, 15 prec10us testimonYy the pılgrimage trom the Syrıan Chrıstıan
clave of Malabar 1n south-west Indıa Jerusalem; but these LW iNScCrY1pt10Ns
leave us askıng whether thıs pilgriımage has een performed tor centurı1es, OF

only since transportatiıon W as modernized. Developments in the British Empıre
An lıkely AaVe facılitated the pılgriımage Jerusalem between the WAaFrs.

The final inscrıption in thıs collection cCOMMEM  Ates IMIOFE buildıng-works,
described by Bahnäm 4S SIN beautitful rOOMmMS', which Rabbaäan Paul added, 45

Bahnäam tells us, HC 1OOI11 and repaır-works LW an hall in 1961
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TIranslation
hıs building CONTAININS S1X chambers LW SLOFCYS A the adjoıniıng C-
tural elements were built the VCar 1958 of Christ* the days of the Great
Priest OUur Lord My Lord Jgenatıus Jacob the Thırd Patrıarch of *Antıioch AM
of Al the ASst AT the CXPCNSC of the of St Mark Jerusalem an of
OUur Father, the late Metropolıitan (Bıshop), My Lord Philoxenus Jacob of Salah
the of the sa1d NaSTErY, and the OINM1ISSION of Rabbän Paul the
SO of Salıha Ghalaf trom Miıdyat, the RKepresentatıve of the Patrıarch and the

of the sa1d

Fıinal HOL, by Andrew Palmer
14 15 wıth regreit that ave een obliged conclude that the MOST famous of the
INSCFT1PT1ONS of St Mark 15 fiction of about 1500 after The authenticity of
the LW epigraphic records referring the twelfth Al sixteenth GENTUNLES,
spectively, ı13; by NTrast, unassaılable, although they WerTre probably copıed ı
theır presecnt form ı the mıd-nıneteenth CENTUFY., It ı15 SUrPTMSINg that the O-
Fratılons of the eighteenth CENLUFY, recorded accordıng Bahnam, ı INan

SCrY1pPtSs kept AT St Mark’s, aVvVe NOT eft epiıgraphic Epigraphy, 1ke dd=
ary-wrıiung, 15 habıt whiıch Caln be lost the other hand 1T 15 possıble that the
eighteenth century buildings WEeTIC replaced by those of the later nıneteenth CEeEN-

u radıcally that theır building--INSCN1PT1ONS disappeared. It that thıs
nıneteenth-CCNTUrYy of WAsS stimulated by iınflux of
from the taıthful ı Syrıa and ı Indıa connected, perhaps, wıth renewed
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thusı1asm for the pilgrimage Jerusalem about the mıddle of the CENTLUFrY. The
epigraphic record of the nıneteenth CENTUCY begıns 1n Arabıc scr1pt, then
changes Arabıc in Syriac scr1pt. bılıngual Syrıac and Arabıc inscrıption of
1905 heralds the Freiurn of the Syriac language, which supplants Arabiıc iın the
epigraphic record tor the Fest of the twentieth CENTUFY. The late nıneteenth and
early twentieth CENTLUCY W as per10d of renewed learnıng iın the Syrıan CIr-
thodox Church, which produced AT least EW scholars of LCLLOWIN AT that time:
the Patrıarch Ignatıus Ephraem Bars< and the Bıshop Philoxenos Yühannon
Dolabanı. hıs ımprovement in Syrıac lıteracy, which went hand ın hand wıth
1C kınd of natıonalısm, AaPPCaIs Aave prompted the bıshops of Jerusalem
abandon the HSE of Arabıc in theır inscr1pti0ons. It W as in 1903 that monk AT

51Jerusalem boasted about ‘the envıable natıon of the Syrıan Jacobites
'The final instalment of thıs serl1es of artıcles the Syrıan Orthodox

iın Jerusalem 111 contaın descriptions of manuscrı1pts and the BOXT. of certaın
contaıned 1n manuscrı1pts, which 4A1 ot interest tor hıstory, such 45 the

three colophons teatured in Palmer, “The Hıstory ot the Syrıan Orthodox 1ın
Jerusalem, art Iwo Queen Melisende an the Jacobite Estates’, OrChr /6,
1992 /4-94, and the natiıonalıstic colophon ot 1903 It 111 also contaın
ındex the whole ser1es. apologize readers for the aıiılure keep
plan 45 announced in SUCCESSIVE ınstalments. At the end record debt

co-author Geert Jan Vanlnl Gelder, who establıshed from photographs
the BGXT of the Arabıc inscr1ptions and translated them;: SOTINC readıngs were

improved by Kauthold. G. J Vall Gelder W as also responsıble tor wrıtiıng the
Arabıc words an tor translatıng the relevant DPasSsagc buildıng-

works trom Bahnaäam’s booklet. We enjoyed the secretarıal assıstance of Adrie
Drint: graduate student of Christian Arabic AT Groningen Unıiversıity.

7 See Palmer, “The Hıstory of the Syrıan Orthodox Jerusalem’, OrChr 7 $ 1991 I


